
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk

 
 
 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Councillor L H K Edie (Chairman)  
Councillor D T Nicklen (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor A E D Barham 
Councillor E H Ben Moussa 
Councillor J Burrell 
Councillor S P Butterfill 
Councillor R M Currans 
Councillor P Cutler 
Councillor L H K Edie 
Councillor B Garden 
Councillor A Gaskin 
 

Councillor G R Holt 
Councillor M B Kelly 
Councillor A J Oakley-Dow 
Councillor V Oguntope 
Councillor E E Palmer 
Councillor D J Reynolds 
Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE 
Councillor Mrs R F Storey 
 

 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 
 

Tuesday 15 November 2022 
 
 

at 7 pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 
 

 
Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services 

7 November 2022 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 

 



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Tuesday 15 November 2022 
 
  
1. Apologies for Absence   

 
 
2. Declarations of Interest   

 
 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 

terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
the Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services. 
 

 

 
3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2022  (Pages 1 - 

8) 
 

 
4. Urgent Items   

 
 The Chairman will announce her decision as to whether there 

are any urgent items and their position on the agenda.  
 

 

 
5. To consider references from other Committees (if any)   

 
 
6. Chairman's Update   

 
 
7. Regulation 9 Notice [Forward Plan]   

 
 To consider any issues arising from the Regulation 9 Notice for the 

period 14 October 2022 to 28 February 2023.  
 

 

 
8. Princes Park Annual Update 2021-22  (Pages 9 - 

16) 
 

 
9. Dartford Cricket Club Ltd. 2021-22 Annual Report  (Pages 17 

- 22) 
 

 
10. Corporate Plan Performance Indicators 2022  (Pages 23 

- 34) 
 

 



11. Committee Work Plan 2022-23  (Pages 35 
- 40) 

 
 To consider an update to the Committee’s current Work Plan. 

 
 



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 12 July 2022 
at 7.00 pm. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor Laura Edie (Chairman) 
Councillor Danny Nicklen (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs Anita Barham 
Councillor Sue Butterfill 
Councillor Paul Cutler 
Councillor Brian Garden 
Councillor Alina Gaskin 
Councillor George Holt 
Councillor Victoria Oguntope 
Councillor Avtar Sandhu MBE 
Councillor Mrs Rebecca F Storey 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor Emma Ben Moussa 
Councillor John Burrell 
Councillor Rosanna M Currans 
Councillor Maria B Kelly 
Councillor Adrian Oakley-Dow 
Councillor Ellenor E Palmer 
Councillor Denzil J Reynolds 
 

 
 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 

 
 Peter Dosad – Director of Housing & Public 

Protection 
 Stephen  – Leisure & Communities Officer 

 
PRESENT TO RESPOND TO ISSUES RAISED BY THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 

 
 Lorna Strawson – Orchard Theatre Director, Trafalgar 

Theatres 
 Tal Rosen – Orchard Theatre General Manager, 

Trafalgar Theatres 
 
 

CABINET MEMBERS: 
 

 Councillor Jeremy Kite MBE, Leader of the Council, 
Cllr. Patsy Thurlow, Portfolio Holder for Arts & 
Culture 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
As previously advised to Members, prior to the election of a Committee 
Chairman that evening [Min. No. 3 refers], the Vice-Chairman Councillor 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 12 JULY 2022 
 

2

Nicklen, opened the meeting and welcomed Members, Officers and guests to 
the proceedings. 
 
Apologies for absence were noted for Councillors: Ben Moussa, Burrell, 
Currans, Kelly, Oakley-Dow, Palmer and Reynolds.  
 
The Leader of the Council was in attendance in his role as Cabinet Chairman, 
and the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Arts & Culture for consideration of Item 8 
– Orchard Theatre Annual Report and Accounts for 2021-22 [marked as ‘To-
Follow’ in the published agenda papers].  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN FOR 2022-23 MUNICIPAL YEAR  
 
The Vice-Chairman, Cllr. Nicklen, asked for nominations for the role of 
Chairman for the current 2022-23 municipal cycle, on behalf of non-
Administration Councillors on the Committee [Annual Council Min. No. 21 
refers]. 
 
Councillor Laurie H K Edie was formally nominated and seconded for the role, 
and in the absence of any other nominations, was unanimously elected 
Chairman of the Committee for the remainder of the 2022-23 municipal cycle, 
and assumed the chairmanship for the remainder of the proceedings. 
 
She thanked Members for electing her as Chairman, and said that going 
forward, she wished all voices to be heard at Scrutiny proceedings. She 
expressed the hope that the scope of the Committee’s work could be 
expanded, to include scrutiny of Dartford’s air quality, with particular regard to 
the increased emissions caused by vehicles ‘idling’ in traffic. A review of the 
current street cleaning services was another personal target. 
 
The Committee Co-ordinator advised that both topics proposed by the 
Chairman were currently scrutinised by the Policy Overview Committee (POC) 
which he also clerked, and were considered on an annual basis by the POC 
as set out in that Committee’s rolling Work Plan (WP). 
 
He advised that the primary function of the Scrutiny Committee, as set out in 
detail in its Protocol, was to hold the Cabinet to account and scrutinise its 
decisions as published in the extant Forward Plan [Regulation 9 Notice], 
either prior to or following implementation by Cabinet. The Committee also 
scrutinised the performance of Council provided services and was required to 
draw up an annual Work Plan to schedule its activities [Min. No. 10 refers]. In 
addition, Members of all political groups represented on the Committee could 
draw-down items for consideration on an ad-hoc basis, in accordance with the 
terms set out in the Committee’s Protocol.  
 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 12 JULY 2022 
 

3

Consideration of matters of policy [rather than performance], including the 
provision of services from outside bodies such as the NHS (and calling those 
external bodies to account and appear before Members), was the role of the 
POC as set out in detail its own separate Protocol. All matters concerning 
crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour (ASB), fell within the purview of the 
Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) Committee to consider, under the 
terms of its Protocol and Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the 
Dartford Community Safety Partnership (DCSP). The separate and distinct 
Protocols for each of the Council’s three principal scrutiny committees (as 
outlined above), were specifically designed to ensure that Members and 
Officers did not duplicate time and effort scrutinising the same areas of policy 
and performance.  
 

4. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 
APRIL 2022  
 
   RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the Committee meeting held on 20 April 2022 be 
confirmed as an accurate record of those proceedings. 
 

5. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman announced that there were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

6. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
There were no references from other committees. 
 

7. REGULATION 9 NOTICE (FORWARD PLAN)  
 

RESOLVED:  
 

That the contents of the Forward Plan for the period 17 June 2022 to 31 
October 2022 be noted. 
 

8. ORCHARD THEATRE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS YEAR  
ENDING 31 MARCH 2021  
 
The papers had been marked as ‘To-Follow’ in the published agenda and 
were considered by Members on a tabled basis.  
 
The covering report from the Leisure & Communities Officer informed 
Members that in March 2021 The Orchard Theatre’s parent management 
company HQ Theatres & Hospitality Ltd, had joined forces with Trafalgar 
Entertainment (TE) and now operated under the Trafalgar Theatres’ name. 
The Council’s contract with HQ [now TE] was in its eleventh year of a twenty 
year arrangement, under which the management company was obliged to 
present an annual report and accounts to the Committee [attached as 
Appendices B, C and D to the covering report respectively].  

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 12 JULY 2022 
 

4

 
Attached as Appendix A to the covering report was the Council’s Monitoring 
Schedule, which set out how the Authority would monitor the provision of 
Services as specified in the Specification Schedule between the Council and 
the commercial operator. The targets identified in the Monitoring Schedule 
[Appendix A] were not rigidly applied, but used as reference points against 
which to measure whether, overall, the services being provided by the 
management company were as envisaged by the Council. 
 
The Chairman renewed the Committee’s welcome to the guests from 
Trafalgar Theatres, and given the late tabling of the papers, asked The 
Orchard Theatre Director and General Manager to summarise the 2021/22 
annual report and appendices for Members. 
 
Lorna Strawson advised Members that she had been the Orchard Theatre 
Director for some 4 and a half years and that Mr Tal Rosen had been General 
Manager of the Orchard since 2019 and represented continuity of 
management for the Theatre, both from pre-COVID Pandemic times, and 
subsequently from March 2021, following the subsequent amalgamation 
between HQ Theatres & Hospitality and the Trafalgar Theatres group. 
 
Drawing on the contents of her 2021/22 annual report [Appendix B] and the 
2021/22 Orchard Theatre Programme [Appendix C], the Theatre Director and 
General Manager highlighted the following key points for Members: 
 

 The Trafalgar Theatre Group was well established in the industry with 
its own production company and flag-ship venues at Trafalgar Square 
in London and in Sydney Australia, and management of The Orchard 
by TE represented an opportunity to develop the Theatre; 

 The senior management team had returned to The Orchard from flex-
furlough in November 2020 following closure of the Theatre at the 
height of the Pandemic with 40% redundancies, to begin advance 
planning and tentative re-opening following the relaxation of 
Government guidelines; 

 Following a gradual staff remobilisation exercise from March 2021 and 
despite some staff attrition given the extended closure period, the 
Orchard had resumed operating with 90% of its previous workforce 
intact, including the current management team, casual workforce and 
volunteers, with the Theatre’s first post-COVID production, the ‘Rocky 
Horror Show’ presented in September 2021 to great public acclaim; 

 The Orchard Theatre remained the Borough’s leading cultural asset, 
and #1 destination on TripAdvisor for both Dartford residents and 
across the district; 

 During the Government enforced closure, HQ Theatres had taken the 
opportunity to enhance The Orchard’s facilities by expanding the main 
auditorium and wheelchair access and several front of house 
hospitality improvements, including 10 new credit card terminals from 
Zonal and 5 iPad roaming tills for customers; 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 12 JULY 2022 
 

5

 A gardening club had also been initiated with volunteers during the 
closure, initially tending the Theatre’s street planters then expanding 
its activities to other street gardening activities;  

 The Theatre’s restaurant had been re-mobilised in September 2021 
with a new Head Chief starting in December with increased food 
covers (250+) and a new Tapas menu, with the restaurant being 
awarded a 100% Perfect Venue Score together with a 5 star Food 
Safety Rating  in March 2022; 

 Meat, fish and vegetable suppliers had been changed and reduced, to 
comply with sustainability targets for vehicle emissions, and plastic 
waste reduced with the introduction of Perspex wine cups and 
returnable/reusable plastic cups in the auditorium; 

 Theatre management were undertaking a comprehensive re-survey of 
the Theatre’s customer base with some 85,000 brochures being 
despatched to ascertain who wanted to watch what when, in the 
knowledge that 61% of all Orchard Theatre tickets were bought by 
Dartford residents; 

 Management judged the Theatre’s 2021/22 Programme to be equal in 
quality to pre-Pandemic times, and had attained 85% of pre-Pandemic 
attendance levels. Some 20,000 tickets had been sold for the Panto 
featuring Christopher Biggins as Jack in Jack and the Beanstalk, 
although overall numbers were down at 67% of pre-Pandemic sales; 

 Looking forward, management hoped to grow the potential and use of 
the Theatre through more fashion shows with local retailers again 
donating costumes, and more Council functions building on the recent 
hosting of the Elder’s Forum and Gay Pride events. 

 
In response to a specific question from a Member concerning the Council’s 
share of Orchard Theatre profits [Appendix D refers], the Theatre Director 
advised that the details were not yet to hand for the 2021-22 F.Y. 
 
The Leader of the Council advised the Committee that Trafalgar Theatres, as 
a commercial operation were entitled to make a profit from which the Council 
as owner of the theatre accrued a share, which benefited both parties, and 
was a marked improvement on previous arrangements, when The Orchard 
had been both largely unsuccessful as a venue and a financial burden on the 
Council.    
 
The Chairman thanked her guests for summarising their 2021/22 report 
following the re-opening of The Orchard Theatre in March 2021 and the 
strong post-Pandemic performance in the period under review. 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Arts & Culture supported the Chairman in her 
views and added her own congratulations to the Theatre Management on an 
exceptional post-Pandemic effort, sentiments echoed by the Leader of the 
Council, the Mayor and several other Members.  
 
The successful holding of the Council’s Elder’s Forum and Gay Pride events 
at the Orchard was highlighted by several Members, and the Leader advised 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 12 JULY 2022 
 

6

that going forward, the Council intended to increase the use of The Orchard to 
hold further Council events.    
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the contents of the 2021/22 annual report and 
accounts from Trafalgar Theatres for the operation of The Orchard 
Theatre, Dartford as set out in Appendices B, C and D to the covering 
report; 

2. That Members note the terms of the Council’s Monitoring Schedule 
attached as Appendix A to the covering report. 

 
9. COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE PRECEDING 2021-22 

MUNICIPAL CYCLE  
 
The Chairman and Members thanked the Clerk for his comprehensive report 
and Appendices, and his continued support of the Committee throughout the 
period under review. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Committee’s Annual Report for the 2021-22 municipal cycle 
be approved as presented and submitted to the General Assembly of 
the Council.  

 
10. COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2022-23 - UPDATE  

 
The Committee considered a report and updated Work Plan (WP) document 
[attached as Appendix A to the report]. 
 
The Chairman repeated her hope [Min. No. 3 refers], that the focus of the 
Committee’s work [as presently detailed in Appendix A to the report], could be 
expanded going forward, to include new topics and areas of Council service 
provision. She proposed a study of the Council’s current parking provisions 
and litter services, in addition to the standard annual update reports submitted 
by The Orchard Theatre Management, Dartford Football Club for Princes 
Park, Dartford Cricket Club in Hesketh Park and for the first time, Dartford 
Rugby Club following completion of the 2021-22 season [report para 3.5 first 
bullet point refers]. 
 
The Committee Clerk undertook to report back to the Chairman on her 
proposal that a study of the Council’s current parking provisions be received 
by the Committee. His initial advice was that such a report would fall within 
the remit of the Policy Overview Committee, but he would confirm his initial 
advice with the relevant Director.  
 
Post Meeting Note 
 
Local Impact Report (LIR) on the London Resort development [report para 3.5 
second bullet point refers]: post proceedings, the Head of Planning Services 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 12 JULY 2022 
 

7

has advised that this proposal has been overtaken, following the withdrawal of 
the application by the London Resort consortium on 28 March 2022 prior to 
consideration by the Secretary of State. A claim from the Council for costs, 
remains before the Planning Inspectorate for decision. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 7.55 pm 
 
  

 
 

Councillor L H K Edie 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 7 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

15 November 2022 

PRINCES PARK-DARTFORD FOOTBALL CLUB ANNUAL REPORT 
2021/22 

 
 
Ward: Brent 
 

   
1.   To consider the Dartford Football Club Annual report 2021/22 and ancillary 

matters.  
 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 
 That the contents of the Dartford Football Annual Club Report 2021/22, at 
Appendix A to the report, be noted. 

 
 

3. Background and Discussion 
 
3.1 The lease for Dartford Football Club (covering the whole of Princes 

Park, with the exception of the mini pitches) was completed in March 
2012 and expires on 31 January 2034. 
 

3.2 The Service Level Agreement for Princes Park (excluding the mini 
pitches) between the Council and Dartford Football Club is reviewed 
annually in March of each year. The Service Level Agreement requires 
an annual report from Dartford Football Club to the Council.  
 

3.3 The Council grant payable to Dartford Football Club in 2021/22, was 
£90,000.  
 

3.4 The Council received a grant from the Football Foundation, which part 
funded the build of the mini pitches. A condition of the grant funding is 
that the Council has to account for all income and expenditure relating 
to the mini pitches. A five year Service Level Agreement is in place with 
Dartford Football Club until 31 March 2025, to manage the mini pitches. 
 

3.5 Under the mini pitch Service Level Agreement, Dartford Football Club 
receives a fee of £20,994 (paid quarterly) to maintain and operate the 
bookings of the pitches, and a share of the income (net income 
reduced by the grant, electricity costs, other minor sundries and a 
contribution to the refurbishment reserve). 
 

3.6 The Dartford Football Club’s annual report for 2021/22, is at Appendix 
A to the report, for noting. 

   
 

Page 9 Agenda Item 8



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

15 November 2022 

 
4 Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

HW2 Increase the opportunities for participating in sporting, cultural and 
leisure opportunities 

 
5 Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None  
Legal Implications 
Public Sector Equality 
Duty  
Crime and Disorder duty  

None 

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None 

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative Implications None  
Risk Assessment None 
 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable 
 
7. Appendices 
 
 Appendix A – Dartford Football Club Report 2021/22 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section 
and 

Directorate 
 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

  Stephen Jefferson 
 

Community 
Services 
Growth & 
Community   
 

N/A 

Page 10Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

 

Princes Park June 2021 – May 2022 

Gate attendances July 2021 – May 2022: Average crowd of 1278, total attendance for league games 
25,560. We also had two cup games, bringing the total crowds for Dartford matches near 30,000.  
The season ran as a normal season after Covid with no restrictions in place for crowd numbers. The 
first team had another good season, but not quite good enough for promotion. Losing in the 
playoffs.  

Golf Usage: April 2021 – March 2022: 5984 rounds by members / loyalty card holders, & pay on gate 
rounds. – The golf course has been maintained to a high standard all year, with the greens getting 
great feedback from people who play. Paul also carries out individual lessons for people around the 
course and in the simulator. Paul has been involved in our community programme all year and 
delivers golf lessons at some of our local primary schools. Paul has been open all year without issues.  

He also continues to run the loyalty scheme where golfers pay for 5 rounds and get their 6th round 
free. The golf course is advertised on Twitter, Facebook, website, periodically in the match day 
programme and advertised locally in Dartford Living magazine. An advertising board is pitch side 
within the stadium, and there is also a road sign on Princes Road by the main gates promoting the 
golf course. Feedback from members is all very positive over the last year.  

The mini pitches at Princes Park were refurbished in August 2021, all new carpets were laid and also 
LED floodlights installed. This improved the condition of them greatly as it had been 11 years since 
original install. The teams and players love the condition of them and we have seen an uprise in 
bookings due to this.  

The mini pitches are fully booked every evening from 5pm onwards and at weekends from 9-5pm, 
we had over 20 local clubs using it in the past year and over 100 casual bookings from people in the 
local community.  

The community pitch saw all its regular bookings of Dartford teams, Halls, London City Lionesses, as 
well as other local teams using it at weekends.  

Dartford FC have regular bookings online for all its facilities, it allows people to book golf, mini 
pitches and the community pitch online. Payment can be taken there and then through PayPal which 
is easier for the customer.  

London City Lionesses ground shared with us again last season, this makes it the fourth season. The 
professional outfit play their games on a Sunday and train at Princes Park every day in the 
afternoons. They currently play in the Women’s Super League Championship. Last season they 
finished second behind Liverpool. This year their aim is very much promotion to the Women’s Super 
League. Obviously there has been a real rise in the profile of Ladies football and having LCL here 
really highlights Princes Park and provides great coverage nationwide. Their average crowd last 
season was 400 and they played 14 games.  

Charlton u23 also continued to play here last season on Monday afternoons, playing 15 games in 
total. Their average crowd was 150 per game. Part of the agreement was a first team friendly in July 
2022, this was attended by 3000 people.  

Page 11 Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

 

The Academy (16-19 years old) ran three teams last season. 

SCL x3 teams (76 students) 

COURSE 

A 3-year, full-time education and football development programme for 16-19 year olds.  

Year 1 - BTEC Level 3 Subsidiary Diploma in Sport 

Year 2 - BTEC Level 3 Diploma in Sport 

Year 3 – Personal training qualification (optional 3rd year) 

Players will study a variety of nationally-recognised qualifications within sport, coaching and fitness 
managed by SCL.  

Where required students will study Maths and English GCSE or Functional Skills. 

SCL Education Group is one of the UK’s leading independent providers of education through sport.  

Government approved post-16 private education provider 

Experts in the field of sport and education delivery with over 15 years' experience 

Nationally recognised for high quality advice and guidance  

Programmes delivered in real sports environments  

Proven Progression routes 

UCAS POINTS 

Up to 280 

LEAGUE 

Conference Youth Alliance and SCL league 

COST 

FREE for 16-18 year olds  

ENTRY REQUIREMENTS 

3 GCSES A-C preferably one Maths or English 

FOOTBALL TRAINING 

Dartford FC 

EDUCATION PROVIDER 

Page 12Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

 

SCL Education Group 

Play in the Football in the Conference Youth Alliance and SCL league 

Daily training from highly qualified FA coaches 

Guidance on individual football fitness 

Nutritional advice 

Regular appraisal to monitor development both on and off the pitch 

The Dartford FC Academy is the pinnacle of the football club's development programme and the 
final stage of preparation prior to Reserve and First Team football. 

With our extensive youth development system, we have developed an outstanding reputation for 
nurturing talented players through this and into professional and non-league football. With four 
academy players signing first team contracts this season.  

The Academy will play a fundamental role in Dartford FC’s youth department which will strive to 
create a development culture with the primary function of developing players to compete in the 
First Team squad. 

Here at Dartford FC, we are passionate about developing young footballers through the delivery of 
quality coaching, a unique and unrivalled education programme with the use of modern, state-of-
the-art-facilities. 

PRE-ACADEMY (7-16) 

The pre-academy at Dartford FC forms part of our player pathway to first team football at the club. 
We aim to create a learning environment where talented young players, many of whom have been 
at professional clubs, can continue to progress. Whilst winning is important, our emphasis focuses 
on the way we play. Therefore, developing players who have tactical as well as technical skill is 
delivered throughout the years through a well-balanced learning syllabus. 

Our squads start at u7 (school year 2) and go through to u16s (school year 11), they then trial for our 
full academy if they have achieved the standards required. At an appropriate point, players are 
signed exclusively to the pre-academy squads, until then they can play for their local club teams as 
well. The squads play in the Elite Development Programme (EDP) against professional and semi-
professional advanced player centres. They also play against professional club academy squads. 

The U13s – U16s are members of the Junior Premier League with such teams as Portsmouth, 
Bournemouth, Woking, Isle of Wight, Basingstoke, and Charlton. Foundation squad players are 
expected to be coached for 1.5 hours per week and the Development phase players for 3 hours per 
week. They are coached by minimum FA Level 2, YCA Module 2 coaches, or coaches who are working 
towards that minimum standard. 

The pre-academy is divided into two phases for players to learn and develop in the way that our 
clubs wants them to. We feel that this meets the requirements of the FA strategy, ‘The Future Game’ 

Page 13 Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

 

and mirrors the approach taken in in the professional academy environments through the Elite 
Player Performance Plan. 

FOUNDATION PHASE 

This phase focuses on the development of our u8s – u11. At these ages we focus on Agility, Balance 
& Coordination, the ABCs. Fun and technique are paramount. Whilst it is serious stuff, we like the 
players to learn and develop in a more ‘discovered learning’ environment, so developing an inquiring 
mind and approach is key. A mild sense of self-discipline will be instilled as well. 

DEVELOPMENT PHASE 

This phase focuses on the development of our u12s – u16s. Whilst technical ability is still key in 
terms of the player development process, at these ages players start to learn about the bigger game. 
Roles, responsibilities and tactical application on the field come above winning. A winning mentality 
is strongly encouraged, but not at the cost of losing sight of playing our kind of football. Footballers 
for all scenarios during in a game, is what we need. To be able to read a game and know what is 
required as: an individual; part of a function; and, as a squad as a whole, whilst being strongly 
disciplined….will see a player through to our Academy!  

ELITE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

We have joined a programme involving professional and semi-professional club advanced and 
development centres. Primarily, this involves playing clubs in tri-tournaments during school holidays. 
The clubs involved are: Arsenal, Brighton, MK Dons, Wycombe Wanderers, Walsall, Northampton, 
Histon, Oxford, Brentford and Luton. 

In addition to the Elite Development Programme, we play against: Millwall, Gillingham, QPR, Fulham, 
West Ham, West Bromwich, Woking, Basingstoke, Leyton Orient and Bournemouth. In the main, 
these fixtures involve our Development Phase (u12s – u16s) squads. 

The club is keen to support local football in the Kent County as well. Our Development Phase squads 
continue to support the local county cup competitions. In addition, we are working with other clubs, 
the FA and local /national youth leagues, in order to create a strategic approach to delivering a 
programme just outside of the professional game. 

GIRLS SQUADS 

 Dartford FC already has a thriving girl’s structure. We now have 5 teams from U14s- U16s and a 
Ladies 1st team and development squad, who train at the club once a week coached by qualified Pre 
Academy staff. We also run a girls development centre (school years 3 – 6) with the aim of the 
sessions to develop existing talent and encourage girls in the community to get involved in the club. 
We hope that with a few years hard work we can see a vast improvement in the numbers of girls’ 
squads on offer. Their competitive games are played in the Kent Girls and Ladies football league. 

The ladies 1st team have completed their fourth season and had a successful season reaching two 
cup finals. They won one and unfortunately lost the other. They also finished second in their league 
but only the top team gains promotion so they will be looking to achieve that this season coming.  

Page 14Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

 

 

Dartford Junior Section 

Dartford Football Club runs a thriving and successful Junior Section with teams ranging from U 7 
through to U18’s x24 teams in total. 300 children. All those involved are volunteers, including 
managers and coaches. 

The aim of the Junior Section is to provide adequate facilities for training and matches, arrange 
matches and social events for the members and the surrounding community, provide a competitive, 
friendly standard of football for boys and girls aged 7-21 at the cheapest possible price and to 
promote the game of ‘association football’. 

The club holds the prestigious FA Charter Standard status and has been awarded one of the highest 
levels possible that of a Development Club. 

All our Junior Team Managers and Coaches are CRB checked,  qualified to a minimum of FA Level 1 
with some going on to achieve  FA Level 2. Each team has at least 1 Coach and/or Manager that has 
attended the FA Safeguarding Children & 1st Aid Workshops.  The Child Welfare Officer and 
Committee members regularly carry out checks to ensure that managers and coaches adhere to the 
rules of the club.  These include ensuring the safety of the children whilst in their care and carry out 
spot checks at matches to ensure managers have a full first aid kit. 

Mini Soccer School 

Our mini soccer school operates on a pay and play basis meeting every Saturday during the football 
season – September to May.  Our sessions consist of fun based learning of all aspects of football 
including: 

Passing 

Dribbling (close ball skills) 

Shooting 

1v1 skills 

Team work 

Our aim is to nurture the interest and love of football in boys and girls aged 4-6 (reception- Yr1 only) 
with the option of joining a Dartford Junior Section team when they reach the appropriate age 
group.  At intervals during the season, there may be opportunities for players to get involved with 
tournaments and competitions giving them practical experience of playing in a team. 

The coaches who run our Mini Soccer School come from our own Junior Section and are CRB 
checked, hold FA Safeguarding Children qualifications, First Aid badges and are trained to FA Level 1 
standard. 

Page 15 Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

 

Our Mini Soccer School is run on the 3G mini all weather pitches which are a great surface for 
children to learn and develop their footballing skills.   

 

Community 

The community section is now into its fourth full year and is becoming very well established. We 
employ 2 full time staff supported by 6 casual staff. The aim was to really increase community 
activity in the Borough and financially provide revenue for the club that we had not really explored 
before.  

The junior section (Sunday football boys and girls) has now come under the umbrella of the 
community where it used to be a separate company. They also became the only community club in 
Kent to be awarded the Premier League Stars programme and they deliver reading programmes in 
primary schools. We have a partnership with Playplace to deliver support to youth clubs on local 
estates in Dartford. Holiday courses were well attended up until July 2021 on average 40 children a 
day. We also put a coach into 15 primary schools in the borough who had one on one sessions with 
children identified by the school for needing extra help with reading. The community section funded 
a pentanque area to be built and purchased equipment for multi sports. This area is used by the 
Over 50’s group. The special needs group and Milestone came up once a week to use the facilities 
and be coached in multi sports. The mini pitches were used for a lot of schools tournament last year 
which is good as Princes Park has become the main finals stadium for schools. The community 
section has also funded and created a nature trail at Princes Park, which makes use of one of the 
grass banks, the woodland area and the lake. This is to try and attract more wildlife. Schools will 
start visiting on a regular basis to the nature trail for educational purposes.  

At Christmas last year our community section in partnership with our main sponsors Bericote, 
helped deliver merchandise gifts and tickets to local families at Temple Hill community Hall.  

Vaccine Centre 

We continued to be a vaccine centre from July 2021 up until May 2022. Obviously over time the 
centres changed from every day to twice a week but were still offering the local community a place 
to be able to get their vaccine. This restarts again in September 2022 with the roll out of the booster 
for the winter.  

New 

A big screen was installed in the stadium to provide better match day experience for our supporters. 
Offering the score, as well as adverts and videos.  

All communal areas were decorated in the summer.  

Page 16Agenda Item 8



 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
15 November 2022 

DARTFORD CRICKET CLUB LTD - ANNUAL REPORT ON 
COMMUNITY USE OF THE PAVILION  

 
BRENT WARD 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 To update the Committee on progress with the community use of the Dartford   

Cricket Club Ltd.’s Pavilion at Hesketh Park. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the Committee note the report. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. Dartford Cricket Club Ltd’s Pavilion was opened in March 2015, under a 
25 year lease with the Council, as landlord.  

3.2. The Club’s first year’s activity was reported to Scrutiny in September 
2016. Following the Committee’s request for more detailed monitoring 
information, Cabinet agreed (min number 59) that operators of all those 
facilities that have benefited from Council investment be invited to submit 
a short annual review for publication, which would summarise their 
activities and links with the community. 

3.3. Dartford Cricket Club Ltd has prepared an annual report on community 
use of its Pavilion, as set out at Appendix A. This annual report includes 
details of the Club’s programme of community activities, which will help 
achieve health benefits for participating Borough residents in line with 
the Council’s Health and Well Being Corporate Plan objective. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
Corporate Plan objectives relating to Health and Well Being. 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 
Financial Implications  None 
Legal Implications 
 

 None  
 

Public Sector Equality 
Duty  
 

Although the duty does not apply to Dartford 
Cricket Club Ltd, it is required to comply with the 
Equality Act 2010, which prohibits discrimination 
against people with the protected characteristics 
that are specified in section 4 of the Act. Disability 

Page 17 Agenda Item 9



 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
15 November 2022 

is one of the specified protected characteristics. 
Protection from discrimination for disabled 
people applies to disabled people in a range of 
circumstances, such as the provision of leisure 
facilities etc. The Club is required to take positive 
steps to make reasonable adjustments for 
disabled visitors and members.  

Crime and Disorder duty None 
Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None 

Staffing Implications  None 
Administrative 
Implications 

 None  

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 
  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
  
 N/A 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Dartford Cricket Club Ltd - Annual Report on Community 
Use of the Pavilion 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Stephen Jefferson 

(01322) 343524 
Community    
Services, 
Growth & 
Community   
 

N/A 

Page 18Agenda Item 9



Appendix A 
Annual Report to Dartford Borough Council Scrutiny Committee 

15th November 2022 
Background 

Dartford Cricket Club can trace its origins back to 1727 making Dartford one of the oldest 
Towns in the United Kingdom that is associated with the game of cricket in the World.   

Dartford Cricket Club has been playing and promoting the game of cricket in our local 
community from the ground at Hesketh Park since 1904. 

In 1977, Dartford Cricket Club celebrated its 250 year anniversary with a week-long Festival 
of activities. 

In 2016, Dartford Cricket Club reshaped its constitution to become a private members, not 
for profit Community Amateur Sports Club (a “CASC”). This coincided with the development 
of a new build pavilion at Hesketh Park that was substantially funded and supported by 
Dartford Borough Council.   

In 2017, Dartford Borough Council (as (i) Trustee of The Hesketh Park Charity; and (ii) as 
Landlord of owned land) and Dartford Cricket Club entered into a twenty-five year 
maintenance and repair lease of the facility at Hesketh Park that attracts annual lease rental 
payments at commercial rates that are linked to annual inflation uplifts.  

The Covid pandemic has negatively impacted the quality and appearance of Hesketh Park 
playing area due to extreme overuse by the general public that took place at that time when 
indoor sporting venues were closed.  Dog walking activity increased exponentially during 
that time and has continued.  The same is true for unaffiliated organised football training 
and certain physical health outdoor training sessions. 

Currently Dartford Cricket Club has over two hundred active members comprising 
approximately forty-five life members and vice presidents; fifty two adult playing members; 
over eighty junior members (boys and girls cricket aged between five and seventeen years) 
and over twenty-five social members.  There is a strong ethnic representation (particularly 
Asian black) within the membership in keeping with the dynamics of the local population.  
There is, however, very little interest in cricket participation from the local African black 
origin of our local community.  

Dartford Cricket Club Limited is affiliated to the England and Wales Cricket Board (“ECB”) 
and is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority under the Co-Operative and Community 
Benefit Societies Act 2014. 

 

Page 19 Agenda Item 9



 

Recap on activities of note during the last twelve months 

 St John’s Ambulance – location of choice for various activities in the provision of 
workplace training with increasing focus on mental health champions and cardiac 
emergency support. 

 SLGR – weekly location for a local running club charity for their community runs; 
fund raising days; committee meetings etc., 

 SEEDS – facility provision for yoga during the winter and as a weekend base for long 
ride for a local cycling club. 

 Location venue for Kent County Council “Safe Hands” welfare courses. 
 Weekly yoga classes arranged for group of twelve local members of the community. 
 Frequent hosting of meetings for the local Beaver Scouts group. 
 Full week of a local schools Kwik Cricket tournament arranged for children under the 

age of ten. 
 Two charity fund raising activities organised by Orchard Garage and the Fun Friends 

Group.  Combined total amount raised exceeded £5,000. 
 Location venue for Bexley and Sidcup Charter annual dinner. 
 Location venue charity cricket match for C.R.Y (Cardiac Risk in the Young). 
 Joined forces with Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust and Dartford Borough Council 

to host a memorial cricket match in honour of the late Dr Tariq Shafi, a consultant 
haematologist who contracted and died of Covid in May 2020.   The event raised in 
excess of £1,000 for Valley Hospital Charity.   

 EDI generally – venue provision for a range of multi-cultural ethic; same sex and 
gender neutral gatherings alongside regular venue hiring for weddings; birthday 
occasions; wakes and local community recognition presentations. 

Areas of Continuing Concern 

 Notable increase in anti-social behaviour in and around the main pavilion. 
 Clear evidence of drug related activity in the car park during day time as well as 

evening - reported March 2022. 
 Suspicious behaviour in Hesketh Park after gates are locked – particularly adult men 

drinking and drug taking. 
 Regular incident reporting into Kent Police and Dartford Borough Council. 
 CCTV became inactive and in need of replacement in March 2022. First intial 

awareness contact with PCSO in November 2021 and subsequent meetings/requests 
with Dartford Borough Council since April 2022 but no decision on funding 
replacement forthcoming. 

 Hoax acid attack – May 2022 
 Pallets moved and memorial benches destroyed in random attacks. 

Page 20Agenda Item 9



 

 

 The following are just some of the examples of unauthorised and inappropriate use 
by locals on the cricket ground square and outfield note: Dartford Borough Council 
reacts quickly in all cases: 

I. Personal trainer seen (captured on Instagram video promotion) using the cricket 
sightscreens as resistance training – July 2022. 

II. Large football coaching (approximately 17 teenagers and adults) for an unidentified 
football club. 

III. Certain dog walkers that needed to use the cricket square to exercise their dogs 
“because their paws could not cope with the dry ground” despite the area being 
roped off – July and August 2022. 

IV. Remote controlled drone aircraft activity flown from the cricket outfield – August 
2022 

V. Dirt bike being driven by a child under ten years of age accompanied by parental 
guardian – August 2022. 

 

Harry Bright 

Chairman and Director. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 21 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



                       
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

15 November 2022 

CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2022 
 

 
 
1. Summary 

 
 
1.1  To report on the first quarter returns on the Corporate Plan Performance    

Indicators and to recommend accordingly 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee receives the Corporate Plan Performance Indicators 

Monitoring report at Appendix A and comments on matters it may wish to 
recommend to Cabinet 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
            

3.1. The Corporate Plan sets out the vision and priority themes for the 
Council and the Borough as a whole. It provides a focus for the work of 
the Council from 2021 to 2023, taking account of its primary role in 
delivering high quality services to local residents and businesses, and 
its key role in the regeneration of the area. 

3.2. The Plan retains the key themes set out in the 2017-2020 Corporate 
Plan, with some minor adjustments. Housing now stands on its own, 
whilst Safer Communities becomes Safer and Cohesive Communities. 

3.3. Another change which has been made is to create two sub themes under 
the Economic Development and Regeneration theme, namely “Making 
the Place” which looks at how physical development and regeneration 
can benefit the Borough and “Economic Prosperity” which looks at 
employment and economic development. 

3.4. The Corporate Plan themes are therefore: 

 Economic Development and Regeneration 

 Health and Wellbeing 

 Safe and Cohesive Communities 

 Environment and Sustainability 

 Housing 

In addition, the Plan includes a theme relating to the Council itself: 

 A Council Performing Strongly 

Page 23 Agenda Item 10



                       
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

15 November 2022 

 

3.5. In light of this the Corporate Plan only covers a two year period, rather 
than three, so that the Council can assess the effects of Covid and Brexit 
before looking to a longer planning time frame. 

3.6. As with the 2017-2020 Corporate Plan there is a set of performance 
indicators for each theme. These are divided between those indicators 
which relate to services directly provided by the Council and those which 
relate to the wider state of the Borough, where the Council will not have 
prime responsibility but instead works in partnership with those who do, 
these are termed “Borough Indicators”. 

3.7. The indicators are set out in Appendix A to this report. There are some 
indicators in the Environment and Sustainability section which are new 
and some are related to the only recently established Climate Change 
team.  Data for these areas is being collected and will be reported back 
retrospectively in the next quarter monitoring report. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

These are the indicators relating to the Corporate Plan 
 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 
Financial Implications  None 
Legal Implications 
 

 

 None 
 

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

Some of the targets in the Plan relate to 
lessening the impact of climate change 

Staffing Implications  None 
Administrative 
Implications 

 None  

Risk Assessment  No uncertainties and/or constraints 
 
 
 
 
 
  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
  
 Not applicable 
 
 
 

Page 24Agenda Item 10



                       
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

15 November 2022 

7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Corporate Plan Performance Indicator Monitoring Report 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 
Community 

Services 
Growth & 
Community 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

  Adrian Gowan 
(01322) 343418 

 N/A 

Page 25 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL – CORPORATE PLAN 2021-23 
Performance Indicators Monitoring Report – Q1 2022/23 

 
Performance Indicator Status 

 Alert 

 Warning 

 OK 

 Data Only Indicator (no target) 
 

1. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
MAKING THE PLACE 

 
Council Performance Indicators 

 

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

PPI 29 PPI 29 Community Infrastructure Levy income      To follow 

PPI 31 PPI 31 

Delivery of key projects: 
• Dartford High Street 
• Westgate 
• Lowfield Street 

 

   

Dartford High Street and end of Lowfield Street – works to 
be completed by end of financial year including rising bollards, 
power units for the market, green wall and sculpture at One 
Bell Corner and completed improved paving surface 
throughout. 
Westgate – Formal decision made to step away from previous 
Development Agreement with Muse.  Alternative plans for the 
site are being developed now 

 
Overall Borough Indicators 

   

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

BI 1a BI1a Overall business birth rate 13.7% 
 

Not measured 
for Quarters    

BI 1b BI1b Overall business death rate 13.6% 
 

Not measured 
for Quarters    

 

BI 2 BI2 District wide unemployment rate 4.7% 2.9%    

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 10



2

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

BI 3 BI3 Town Centre Footfall 1,226,992 339,683 
 

  

BI 4 PPI-27 Number of new homes built 
 

606 
Not measure 
for Quarters    

     
2. HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

 

Council Performance Indicators 
  

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

PCS 1a PCS-17 Usage of DBC Sports Facilities: Total 
Fairfield Centre Visits 

 

831,660 306,030    

PCS 1b PCS-18 Usage of DBC Sports Facilities: Average 
Number of Park Run Users 

 

201 265    

PCS 1c PCS-19 Usage of DBC Sports Facilities: Average 
Number of Junior Park Run Users 

 

40 
 

39    

PCS 1d PSC-20 Usage of DBC Sports Facilities: Princes Park 
Mini Pitch Users 

 

89 43    

PCS 2 PCS-2 Number of local groups supported through 
Community Grant and other grant schemes 

9 
13    

PCS 3 PCS-3 Percentage attendance at the Orchard 
Theatre (% of total seats available which are 
used) 

 

33.92%    To follow 

  
Overall Borough Indicators 

  

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

BI 5a BI5a Life expectancy gap for men  7.1 years 
7.1 years   This is the 2019 figure which Dept of Health has not updated 

yet. 

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 10



3

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

BI 5b BI5b Life expectancy gap for women 5.7 years 5.7 years   As above 

BI 6 BI6 Percentage of obese children in Year 6 23.4% 23.4%   As above 

BI 7 BI7 Percentage of adults achieving at least 150 
minutes of physical exercise per week  

56.2% 
See note   These figures are collected annually, so 2022/23 will be 

collected in 2023 
    

3. SAFE AND COHESIVE COMMUNITIES 
 

Council Performance Indicators 
  

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

EARPI 
14a 

EARPI-
14 

Total number of arrests instigated by CCTV 
this month 

 

128 12    

EARPI 
14b 

EARPI-
15 

Total number of arrests supported by CCTV 
this month 

 

250 26    

EARPI 
27 

EARPI-
27 

Number of Fly Tipping investigations by 
Enforcement Officers 

 

316 71    

EARPI 
32 

EARPI-
32 

Number of businesses supporting Dartford 
Town Against Crime (DTAC) 

 

70 70    

EARPI 
34 

EARPI-
34 

Number of Community Protection Warnings 
issued 

 

152 18    

EARPI 
35 

EARPI-
35 

Number of Community Protection Notices 
issued 

 

15 0    
  

Overall Borough Indicators 
  

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

BI 8 BI8 Total number of crimes reported in the 
Borough 

 
   

Although this PI still appears in our corporate plan we have 
been unable to collect data for some time. 
 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 10



4

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

The counting rules for crime pattern analysis have been 
changed by the Home Office; therefore comparisons cannot be 
made until further notice from the Police 

EARPI 5 EARPI-5 No: of domestic abuse incidents 3389 806    

BI 10 BI10 Number of reported anti-social behaviour 
incidents in the Borough by the Police 

 

   

Although this PI still appears in our corporate plan we have 
been unable to collect data for some time. 
 
Due to extensive and confusing changes to Home office crime 
counting rules, (effectively making year on year comparisons 
impossible) this will no longer be reported on via Pentana. The 
difference between crimes reported to the Police and statistics 
gathered by the British Crime survey are markedly different.  A 
full explanation has been submitted to both the DBC 
Community Safety Partnership and Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

   
4. ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY 
 

Council Performance Indicators 
   

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

TBC NA To establish pollination corridors (e.g. 
wildflower strips/planting best for pollinator 
flowers/shrubs) Plant New Trees or 
equivalent plants, to ensure ‘right plant in 
the right place’ Manage, restore/regenerate, 
improve habitats (or Manage, 
restore/regenerate, improve habitat 
condition). 

NA 

See note   

This is a new Corporate Plan PI and further work is needed to 
establish measurable indicators. 
 
However, this year has already seen the launch of a number of 
wildflower meadows and new planting in our parks which 
support the ‘right plant right place’ principle 

TBC NA Level of Carbon emissions & water usage 
from DBC corporate property portfolio. 
Number of Council lead Climate Change 

NA 
See note   

This is a new Corporate Plan PI.  
 
Climate Change team is now in place and the reporting data 

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 10



5

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

Energy efficiency initiatives ongoing and 
completed per year. 

for this PI will be developed with the team. 

TBC NA Average EPC rating of Private & Council 
owned Homes in the Borough Average EPC 
rating of new built Homes in the Borough 

NA 
See note   This is a new Corporate Plan PI. Data still being collected. 

TBC NA Number of DBC homes receiving energy 
efficiency measures. Number of private 
homes receiving energy efficiency measures 
through schemes 

241 

53    

TBC NA Number of local businesses successful in 
LOCASE Grants. 
Number of Properties in the Borough 
benefitting from measures funded by the 
Energy Company Obligation. 

NA 

See note   This is a new Corporate Plan PI. Data still being collected. 

TBC NA Number of Public EV charging points in the 
Borough. Number of Ultra Low emission 
vehicles registered in the Local Authority 
area 

NA 

See note   This is a new Corporate Plan PI. Data still being collected. 

TBC NA % of households in the Borough deemed to 
be in Fuel Poverty 

NA 
See note   This is a new Corporate Plan PI. Data still being collected. 

TBC WRPI-15 Percentage of household waste going to 
landfill 

 

1.1% 
1.2%*   

Data is provided to us in arrears from KCC. The figure for June 
hasn’t come in yet but the figures for April/May indicate the 
average will be 1.2% 

TBC WRPI-4 Number of households taking part in green 
bin service (garden waste) service 

 

8,415 8,426  6,000  

TBC NA The average results from all air quality 
monitoring stations in the Borough. 

 
91.6%    

 

BI 11 WRPI-7 Number of graffiti incidents  

61 46    

BI 12 WRPI-8 Number of fly tipping incidents 3,082 760    
    

5. HOUSING  
 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 10



6

Council Performance Indicators 
  

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

HP 15 HPI-27 No of households on the housing register 1,029 1,108    

HP 16 HPI-12 No of households living in temporary 
accommodation 

 

100 99    

HP 17 HPI-15 Number of households where homelessness 
has been prevented 

 

170 36    

HP 18 HPI-8 Average time taken to re-let local authority 
housing (in calendar days) (EXCL major 
works) 

 
 

29.61 39.89  20  

HP 19 HPI-30 Percentage of repairs completed in time 86.81% 88.36%  98%  

HP 20 HPI-17a Number of service requests completed for 
Private Sector Housing 

 

422 74  250 p/a  

HP 21 HPI-1 Rent Collection and Arrears Recovery - rents 
collected as a proportion of rents owed. 

 

97.59% 92.39%  97.5%  

HP 21  % of Dartford Borough Council stock 
meeting Decent Homes compliance 

 

98.47% 98.77%    
      

Overall Borough Indicators 
    

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

BI 11 PPI-27 Number of new homes completed (April-
March)  

606 Not measured 
for Quarters    

BI 12 HPI-19 Number of affordable homes delivered 
(gross) 

 

199 0  120 p/a  

BI 13 HPI-18 No of private sector vacant dwellings that are 
returned into occupation or demolished 

 

48 11  80 p/a  

BI 14 HPI-17b Number of service requests raised for 
Private Sector Housing 

 

508 101    

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 10



7

    
6. A COUNCIL PERFORMING STRONGLY 
 

Council Performance Indicators 
  

Q1 2022/23 Code 
2022/23 

Code 
2021/22 Performance Indicator 

2021/22 
Value Status 

Target Note 

PF 2 HPI-1 Rent Collection and Arrears Recovery - rents 
collected as a proportion of rents owed. 

 

97.59% 92.39%  97.5%  

PS 3 CTPI14 Percentage of in-year Council Tax collected  

96.3% 29.2%  97.0% p/a  

PS 4 BRPI14 Percentage of in-year Business Rates 
collected 

 

92.8% 30.8%  95.0% p/a  

RBPI 1 HBPI2 Average time taken to process a new claim 
for Housing Benefit (cumulative) 

 

    To follow 

FPI 5/6 FPI-5 Average number of DBC working days lost 
due to short term (<4 weeks) illness per 
employee 

 
 

4.09 0.76  4  

FPI 5/6 FPI-6 Average number of DBC working days lost 
due to long term (>4 weeks) illness per 
employee 

 
 

3.71 0.69  4.84  

FPI 8 FPI-8 Percentage of supplier payments made 
within 30 days of receipt of invoice 

98.24% 
99.45%  99%  

 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 34



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
15 November 2022 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ROLLING WORK PLAN 2022-23 
 
 
1. Summary 

 
To allocate a timeframe for items previously identified by Members for 
inclusion in the Committee’s current rolling Work Plan for the remainder of 
the current 2022–23 municipal year and beyond, and to identify new items for 
inclusion and to allocate a timeframe accordingly. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the Committee considers the updated 2022-23 Work Plan (attached as 
Appendix A to this report), and agrees a timeframe for previously identified and 
new topics as set out below.  
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
 
 3.1 The Scrutiny Committee’s Terms of Reference (ToRs) make provision 

for the Committee to approve an Annual Scrutiny Work Programme 
and to allocate a timeframe for its consideration in a Work Plan to be 
reviewed and updated at each subsequent meeting of the Committee. 
 

 3.2 In setting its own Work Programme and Plan the Committee will take 
into account the minority interest views held by Members on the 
Committee. 
 

 3.3 The Work Programme as detailed in the Plan should ensure that there 
is efficient use of the Committee’s time and that the potential for 
duplication of effort is minimised, especially with regard to the remits 
of the Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) and the Policy 
Overview Committees, as set out in their respective Committee 
Protocols.  
 

 3.4 In considering whether a particular topic or function should be 
included in the Committee’s Work Plan, Members need to be mindful 
of the following: 
 

(1) That the primary role of the Committee is to scrutinise 
decisions of the Cabinet that have either been taken or which 
are included in the Regulation 9 Notices [Forward Plan] for 
future consideration by Cabinet; 
 

(2) That although the nature of the scrutiny will generally dictate 
who participates in the discussion process, inviting participation 
by other councils to give their experiences is not a scrutiny 

Page 35 Agenda Item 11



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
12 November 2022 

 

 

function, but one for the Policy Overview Committee which 
undertakes the overview function, to better inform future policy 
options for the Council; 
 
(3) That discussions on policy statements also fall to the Policy 

Overview Committee to consider under its overview function, 
not the Scrutiny Committee; and  
 

(4) That matters relating to crime and disorder, including anti-
social behaviour (ASB) and Community Safety, fall within the 
remit of the Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) 
Committee. 

 
3.5 
 
 
 
 

At its meeting on 19 October 2021 [Min. No. 23 refers], the Committee 
agreed an initial Work Plan for the ensuing 2022-23 municipal cycle, 
subject to review at the next meeting and input from Officers as to 
appropriate timings for two additional topics: 
 

 A report from Dartford Rugby Club following the conclusion of 
the 2021-22 season; 

 An update from the Head of Planning Services on the Council’s 
Local Impact Report (LIR) on the London Resort Development 
Consent Order [following presentation to Cabinet in March 
2022]. 

 
In the event, the January 2022 meeting of the Committee was 
cancelled, and the agenda for the April meeting devoted to substantial 
and urgent draw-down items.  
 
Firm dates for both items identified by the Committee in October 2021 
remain to be agreed with presenting Officers, but proposals will be 
presented to the Committee on 15 November 2022, to enable 
Members to agree an updated Work Plan and add further items or re-
schedule current ones as appropriate [Appendix A attached]. 
 
  

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 
Legal Implications None 
Public Sector Equality Duty None 
Staffing Implications None 
Crime & Disorder Duty None 

Page 36Agenda Item 11



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
12 November 2022 

 

 

Climate Assessment Impact None 
Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

 
6. Appendix A: Updated Committee Work Plan for remainder of 2022-23  

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents 
consulted 
 

Date File 
Ref 

Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

2021-22  
Committee 
Work Plan and  
2021-22 
Minutes 

1/11/22    David Hook 
Democratic  
Services  
(01322 343276) 

Democratic  
Services/ 
Chief Officer 
& Director 
Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

Page 37 Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Appendix A 

COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2022-23 

12 July 2020 13 September 2022  
15 November 2022 

 
14 February 2023 

 
Orchard Theatre Annual 

Report and Accounts for year 
ended 31 March 2021 

 

Meeting Cancelled 

 
Princes Park Annual 

Update 2021-22 

 
Consider Committee 
Work Programme for 

2022-23  

 
Committee Annual Report for 
preceding 2021-22 Municipal 

Year 

 
 

 
Dartford Cricket Club 

Annual Update 2021-22 

 
 

 
2022-23 Work Plan Update 

 
 

 
2022-23 Work Plan 

Update 

 
 

 
Regulation 9 Notice 

 
 

 
Regulation 9 Notice 

 
Regulation 9 Notice 

 
 

 
 

 
Performance Monitoring 

 
Performance Monitoring 

 
 

   

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 40


	Agenda
	at 7 pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2022
	8 Princes Park Annual Update 2021-22
	DFC Annual Report 2021-22 Appendix A

	9 Dartford Cricket Club Ltd. 2021-22 Annual Report
	DCC Appendix A

	10 Corporate Plan Performance Indicators 2022
	Corporate Plan Performance Indicators Report (Q1 - 2022-23) Final draft

	11 Committee Work Plan 2022-23
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	FINALAppendixAUpdated202223WorkPlan


